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1

(June 17, 2021, 9:06 a.m.)

2

* * *

3

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

4

at 9:06, called to order.

5

call.

6

Jamie Becraft.

All right.

I'm gonna start off with our roll

Our liquor control commission, let me call Vice Chair
Jamie?

7

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

8

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

9

Present.

Please acknowledge your presence by

stating here or present when called upon.

10
11

Thursday, June 17, 2021,

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Jamie Becraft, present.

Thank you.

12

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

13

Bruce will come late because he has one meeting

14

right now.

15

Aaron Boswell.

16

(No response.)

17

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

18

Thank you, Jamie.

Aaron?

He's not here, maybe later.

Later

on, join us.

19

Stanley Ruidas.

20

COMMISSIONER RUIDAS:

21

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

22

Sylvia Ho.

23

COMMISSIONER HO:

24

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

25

COMMISSIONER PATEL:

Stan?
Present.

Okay.

Got you.

Yes, I'm here.

Okay.

Sne Patel.

Thank you.

Here.
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2

CHAIR BOLOSAN:
adjudication board.

4

I'm gonna call on the liquor control

Jason Williams, Chair, are you there.

3

CHAIR WILLIAMS:

4

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

5

CHAIR WILLIAMS:

6

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

7

Allan Almeida, are you here?

8

(No response.)

9

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

10
11

Here.
Okay.
Here.
Thank you.

Thank you, Jason.

Maybe he will join us later.

Melissa Padilla will be late 15 minutes later.
called in.

12

Colleen Cluney.

13

MEMBER CLUNEY:

Present.

14

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Thank you, Colleen.

15

Robbie Sanches.

16

MEMBER SANCHES:

17

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

18

MEMBER KALANIHUIA:

19

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

20

MEMBER KALANIHUIA:

21

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

22

She

Here.
Janice Kalanihuia.

Janice, I --

Present.

-- seen you earlier.
Present.

Okay.

Thank you, Janice.

Thank

you.

23

Shane Dudoit.

24

(No response.)

25

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Are you here?

Okay.

Shane's not here, but if some
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1

of these members will join us later, please acknowledge when

2

you come in.

3

Corporation Counsel Mimi DesJardins?

4

MEMBER AIWOHI:

Leon.

5

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Yes.

6

MEMBER AIWOHI:

This is Lahela Aiwohi from

7

adjudication.

8

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Yes.

9

MEMBER AIWOHI:

So my -- my name wasn't called, but

10

Oh, okay.

I'm on as well.

11

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Oh, Janice?

12

MEMBER AIWOHI:

Lahela Aiwohi.

13

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Oh, I'm very sorry, Lahela.

15

MEMBER AIWOHI:

Thank you.

16

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Thank you.

17

Corporation counsel Mimi DesJardins.

18

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

19

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

20

Okay.

21

MR. ROST:

22

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

23

Director Layne Silva.

24

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

25

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

14

I

apologize.

Okay.

I'm here.

I see you there.

Prosecuting attorney Richard Rost.
Yeah, I'm here.
Thank you.

Okay.

Thank you, Richard.

Present.

Deputy director Jarrett
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6

Kahoohanohano.

2

DEPUTY DIRECTOR KAHOOHANOHANO:

3

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

4

I have to acknowledge these two ladies that work so

5

Okay.

Present.

Thank you.

hard for us, Maria Khangsengsing.

6

(No response.)

7

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

8

Lianne Suzuki.

9

individuals.

Well, I know she's around.

And

I'd just like to acknowledge these two

10

Okay.

11

(No response.)

12

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Did I miss anyone?

Okay.

If not, let's go on to our

13

workshop.

14

adjudication board members shall receive presentations from

15

personnel from the department of liquor control, prosecuting

16

attorney, the corporation counsel on the following items.

17

action will be taken by the members.

18

The liquor control commission and liquor control

No

Before I call on Director Layne Silva, I just wanted

19

to make a note over here.

20

then ask questions in the end so at least we can speed up our

21

meeting.

22
23

Let's cover all the items first and

Without taking any longer, let me call Director
Layne Silva to cover A, 1 through 5, B, 1 to 5, and C, 1 to 5.

24

Layne, take it away.

25

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

Thank you very much, Leon.
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Good morning, everyone.

7

I'm very happy that we're

2

getting together this way this morning.

3

be -- there is some valuable information.

4

of information, so what I'm gonna do, I'm gonna kind of just

5

skim through it and touch on the important parts, because as

6

you're all -- I'm sure you're all aware, you all have seen the

7

rule book.

8

be more than happy like Leon mentioned when we get to the end

9

to answer any questions that you might have, and I think the Q

I think this is gonna
Now, there is a lot

A lot of these rules are very extensive, but I'd

10

and A might be a little more valuable than, you know, the

11

verbatim what's coming out of the book.

12

But, anyway, to get started; first I'm gonna cover

13

the department and the -- first, the duties and functions of

14

the department.

15

is to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the general

16

public by regulating and controlling the liquor industry and

17

the importation, manufacture, sale, and service of alcoholic

18

beverages.

19

for the regulation and control of the importation,

20

manufacture, sale, and service of alcoholic beverages by

21

providing services and liquor license and permit applications,

22

licensees' education, site inspection, and enforcement of

23

liquor laws and rules.

24

the -- our mission.

25

First of all, the mission of the department

The department of liquor control is responsible

Okay.

So that pretty much covers

Our duties and functions are as follows:
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1

department is -- consists of basically three sections:

2

administrative section, the enforcement section, and the

3

executive section.

4

of our licensing division.

5

the applicants, corresponds with applicants that -- or

6

existing licensees, you know, to answer any questions or to

7

take in their applications and help the processing of the

8

applications for permits, new licenses, as well as special

9

functions working with the nonprofits within Maui County and

The

Now, the administrative section is made up
Those are the ones that meets with

10

things of that nature.

11

in the issuing of permits.

12

anything from the re- -- or the change in an actual facility

13

or a licensed premises where there are physical changes taking

14

place, to special functions such as weddings, gatherings, and

15

things of that nature.

16

that.

17

They also deal with existing licensees
Now, permits can pertain to

So the licensing section takes care of

They also handle the registration of minors, any

18

minor between the age of 16 and 18 that is going to be

19

employed in a qualified licensed premises needs to be

20

registered with the department of liquor control, that is also

21

done through our licensing section.

22

Certification, which refers to our exam, people that

23

are being certified to be considered possible managers or

24

someone -- as it's referred to, as a certification card.

25

lot of people refer to that as their liquor license.
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
808-524-2090 courtreporters@hawaii.rr.com

A

It is

June 17, 2021

9

1

not a liquor license.

2

educational session, they took an exam, and they passed, and

3

it tells the department and the investigators that they should

4

have a basic knowledge of the rules, enough to be able to

5

operate a licensed premises or even manage or control a

6

licensed premises.

7

That just means that they attended an

The licensing section is also tasked with providing

8

the educational classes and exam.

9

the -- those exams have been kind of sporadic.

Based -- because of COVID,
We've been

10

trying to do them recently since things have loosened up a

11

little bit.

12

scheduled this month.

13

happening tomorrow, another one next week Friday in the

14

Central Maui area.

15

looking at doing the exam -- we're -- and if you didn't know,

16

we are now located at the Maui County Service Center.

17

no longer in the David Trask Building.

18

We're off of Hoo -- Lahookai or -- I'm not sure.

19

name of that road out there, but the one that Kahului Safeway

20

is on.

21

looking -- they have big classrooms here that we're looking at

22

getting into so we can start doing weekly exams as well.

23

is handled by the administrative services.

24
25

We've done an on-site, we have two more on-sites
As a matter of fact, I believe one is

And we are also at this time reserving and

We're

We're in Kahului.

Where DMV is, we're upstarts over there.

I forget the

And we're

That

Also handled by the administrative services is our
financial requirements, the budget.

Right now, Sandy
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1

Kobayashi is -- we're in the middle -- and, again, if you're

2

not aware, we're in the middle of our renewals right now.

3

We're renewing all liquor licenses in Maui County.

4

is where our funding comes from, is the renewed licenses will

5

be assessed a percentage fee based on their gross liquor sales

6

over the past fiscal year, and that is also handled by the

7

administrative services.

8
9

Then we have our enforcement section.

And that

I would think

in the industry; those are the people that are the most well-

10

known.

11

physical inspections in the licensed premises.

12

responsibilities are they operate the minor decoy operations

13

where we send minors into licensed premises to see if they're

14

going to sell liquor to a minor or if they're gonna actually

15

do what they're supposed to do and check the IDs and ensure

16

that minors are not getting liquor sold or served to them.

17

They also provide educational visits to licensees where

18

they'll actually contact the licensee, arrange a time to meet

19

with them in the licensed premises, and we offer -- you know,

20

we give them the opportunity to ask questions.

21

They are investigators that actually go out and do
Their

Again, like I mentioned earlier, if you've looked at

22

our rule book, it's quite extensive.

23

people don't fully understand what it is we're trying to say,

24

so we're trying to give them that opportunity to ask those

25

questions and just to clarify what it means and how to comply

You know, sometimes
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with what we do.

2

11

Those are our educational visits.

We also do regulatory inspections of licensed

3

premises, which is where we'll go out at random and inspect

4

premises to ensure that they are complying with the rules.

5

Voluntary compliance is the goal and -- and issue a notice of

6

violation upon if there are violations happening within the

7

licensed premises.

8

enforcement section.

9

Those are the responsibilities of the

Then we have the executive branch, which is the

10

office of the director, and we are the -- we basically review

11

and oversee the operations within the department as well as

12

sign and issue new licenses, permits, and things of that

13

nature.

14

mission, and goal of the department of liquor control.

15

Next, we'll go on to the rules of the liquor

So that basically covers the duties, functions,

16

commission.

17

the Hawaii Revised Statutes, are the rules that regulate the

18

industry, the liquor industry in Maui County.

19

process, in Chapter 102, it basically spells out the entire

20

process where anyone is able to and eligible to make --

21

propose an amendment or a change to any rule.

22

Petition for adoption, amendment, or repeal of rules, and it

23

spells out exactly what the requirements are and how to do it.

24

Once those rules are reviewed and accepted of the proposals,

25

then they'll -- at that point, they'll be forwarded to the

The rules of the liquor commission, as well as

The rule-making

It's 08-102-11,
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1

commission for the commission's review and public hearing.

2

The public will have an opportunity to give input on what they

3

think about the proposed rule, amendment, or change, and once

4

public input is taken into consideration by the liquor

5

commission, at that point they will make a ruling whether to

6

approve it or not, and that is done by majority.

7

Okay.

So now we're gonna move on to Item B, which

8

is the liquor control commission.

9

commission duties and responsibilities, shout out again,

The liquor control

10

Chapter 102 of the Rules of the Liquor Commission, County of

11

Maui, the jurisdiction and powers, 08-102-20, as well as

12

within the Maui County Charter, Chapter 13 spells out the

13

rules and responsibilities and duties of the liquor

14

commission.

15

that is exactly where you will find what that is and what that

16

entails.

17

earlier, when it comes to rule changes, approving or

18

disapproving license applications for a new liquor license

19

that are trying to become licensees in Maui County, they --

20

the department will present to the liquor commission, and they

21

will basically decide based on what is presented to them

22

whether it's approved or not.

23

And, again, it is, you know, quite extensive, but

The duties and responsibilities, like I alluded to

The licensing section basically is where the

24

majority of the information that goes to the liquor commission

25

comes from.

They're the ones that deal directly with the
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1

applicants and the licensees to prepare the reports and the

2

applications that are being forwarded to the liquor commission

3

for approval or for consideration.

4

All license applications for a liquor license in

5

Maui County go through two hearings.

6

which is the preliminary hearing, is for consideration of

7

whether the application has enough merit to move forward to go

8

to the public hearing.

9

preliminary hearing, at that time they'll be scheduled for a

The initial hearing,

If they are approved in their

10

public hearing in which the public will be notified, everyone

11

within a 500-foot radius of the proposed licensed premises

12

will be notified of the proposed application, and they will

13

all be given an opportunity to testify, whether for or against

14

that application.

15

And the public hearing is where the liquor

16

commission will hear all of that presentation to them, and

17

that's where they'll make a decision whether or not to approve

18

the issuance of the liquor license to the applicant.

19

time, if the application is approved, the applicant typically

20

will have 180 days to execute that license; however, that

21

180-day limit is extendible by request to the liquor

22

commission.

23

or whatever the case may be that will delay their opening, and

24

that's fairly typical.

25

At that

Sometimes it takes longer to get their clearances

Public testimonies and protests, again, during the
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1

public hearing process or any -- the public is able to testify

2

on any agenda item during the public hearing portion of any

3

meeting, and the commission will listen to the testimony,

4

whether for or against, and take all -- take into

5

consideration.

6

public testimony, based on complaints, based on protests,

7

where the commission does have the authority to implement

8

restrictions or conditions on specific licenses, specific

9

licenses that may --

10
11

Based on -- there have been instances based on

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Excuse me, Director, somebody

(inaudible).

12

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

Okay.

Anyway, conditions

13

can be placed on these licenses based on testimony, based on

14

protests, or public testimony involved with that licensed

15

premises.

16

to have live music and entertainment, things that can affect

17

the surrounding areas that are brought to light through public

18

testimony.

19

factor, the liquor control commission also has the ability to

20

deny the liquor license as well.

21

protests.

22

within a 500-foot radius that would protest or be against a

23

specific license application, that would qualify that

24

application to be denied, as well as if any of the officers or

25

principal -- principal operators of the licensed premises were

Things such as the hours of operation, the ability

And, of course, if any -- for any disqualifying

It could be based on

If there is a majority of the property owners
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1

found to be statutorily disqualified.

2

convicted felon cannot hold a liquor license in Hawaii.

3

Okay.

It's state law that a

Now we're gonna go on to the liquor control

4

adjudication board.

5

liquor control adjudication board are when the cases are

6

brought forward to the adjudication that are reviewed by the

7

prosecutor -- and I'm sure Richard will touch on this a little

8

bit more when he speaks to you guys as far as the process and

9

how it makes it to you.

The duties and responsibilities of the

But your responsibility is, is to

10

basically listen to the facts, listen to the case, and make a

11

determination whether guilt or innocent or what the penalty

12

may be, you know, based on the infraction as well as what is

13

allowed by law.

14

The enforcement section goes out and will issue a

15

notice of violation to a licensed premises; at that time they

16

will type up a report -- and just to clarify, because I know

17

that there is a lot of confusion even in the public with the

18

licensees, a notice of violation is not -- does not mean

19

anyone is guilty of anything.

20

they're notifying the licensee that on a given day and time,

21

this is what was observed, and the notice of violation is

22

being issued as a notification to the licensee of what was

23

observed.

24

at that time.

25

Basically, what it is is

It does not indicate guilt or innocence of anything

The -- a report is created that will be reviewed by
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1

the office of the director, as well as the prosecuting

2

attorney to determine the merit and whether or not it meets

3

the qualification to go before the adjudication board, and the

4

licensee or person who received the notice of violation will

5

have an opportunity to -- to present their case as well.

6

the adjudication board is somewhat of a quasi-court setting, a

7

nine-member panel that will hear all cases and determine the

8

outcome.

9

Okay.

So

There are mandatory minimum penalties for the

10

infractions of excessive service, as well as sale and service

11

to a minor.

12

Excuse me.

13

three-strike saying that is said by some people.

14

the minimums are the same for excessive service, which is

15

overservice or allowing someone to become intoxicated within

16

the licensed premises, or sale or service to a minor within

17

the licensed premises.

18

when found guilty, the mandatory minimum penalty would be a

19

fine of not less than $1,000, no portion of which may be

20

suspended.

21

offense of either excessive service or sale or service to a

22

minor during the -- within the previous five years of the last

23

violation of the same, the fine shall be $2,000, no portion of

24

which may be suspended.

25

the same offense within a five-year period, the minimum

These penalties are mandatory, the minimum.
I don't know if any of you are familiar with the

Okay.

Basically,

All of which, on the first offense,

On the second offense, committing the same

On the third offense of committing
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1

penalty shall be a suspension of the license.

2

fourth offense found guilty within five years of the previous

3

penalty, the sentence shall be revocation of license.

4

basically, those are what are spelled out as the mandatory

5

minimum penalties for those two infractions.

6

And on the

So

Findings of fact, conclusion of law, and decision

7

and order, basically what happens there is that is -- they

8

are -- the findings of fact is what is provided to the

9

licensee for their information because everything that is

10

brought before the adjudication board, the licensee that is

11

the defendant is allowed to represent themselves and state

12

their case.

13

inform them of what the penalty shall be.

14
15

Findings is what is provided to the licensee to

Appeal -- there is an appeal process also.

I

apologize, I need to --

16

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

17

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

Mr. Chair.
The appeal process is they

18

have 30 days to submit the appeal to the department, to the

19

office of the director, which will be forwarded to the

20

adjudication board and to the prosecuting attorney's office

21

for review, possibly to appeal a guilty verdict or an

22

unfavorable verdict on their part.

23

Also, the Hawaii Small Business Regulatory

24

Flexibility Act must always be taken into consideration in the

25

issuance of licenses, making of rules, as well as in the
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1

determination during the adjudicatory process.

2

Business Regulatory Flexibility Act, I believe you guys were

3

all provided.

4

that I always contemplate, is:

5

small business is defined as a for-profit corporation, limited

6

liability company, partnership, limited partnership, sole

7

proprietorship, or other legal entity that is domiciled and

8

authorized to do business in Hawaii, is independently owned

9

and operated, and employees -- fewer than 100 full-time or

The Small

What I will do is -- and this is the question
What is a small business?

10

part-time employees in Hawaii.

11

that need to be considered when those conditions apply.

A

There are special conditions

12

And with that being said, I believe -- Leon, were we

13

gonna do questions per section, or are we gonna go through the

14

whole thing first, or how do you want to do this?

15
16

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:
you're muted.

You're muted.

You're muted.

17

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

18

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

19

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

20

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

21

Okay.

Gotcha.

Thank you, Jamie.

Thank you for

watching, you know, over me.
COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

23

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

25

Leon, your mute is on.

Okay.

22

24

Mr. Chair,

You're good.

Okay, all right.

So is there any

more, Director?
COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR BOLOSAN:

2

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

19

Go ahead, Jamie.
Yeah, Mr. Chair, he's asking

3

if you want to just go through everything without asking

4

questions, but one thing I've noticed here is I've written

5

down a couple of questions and --

6

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

7

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

8

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

9

Okay.
I would actually suggest -If you want to do them by

section --

10

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

11

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

12

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Yeah, I think by --- then maybe we can --

-- each one, because I'm

13

gonna go all the way back to funding, you know, and I think

14

we're getting lost.

15

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

16

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Okay.
You know what I mean?

So

17

maybe after each one section, if we have any questions, then

18

move to the next little section, next, you know, topic, next

19

topic like that.

20

lost in our questions.

21

Because otherwise, I think we're gonna get

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Well, Vice Chair, at first I was

22

endorsing for we ask questions in the end, just so our meeting

23

could go faster, but if there is no -- you know, any one of

24

the members saying, you know, we could go ahead -- by you

25

asking, you know, if you could ask questions right now, I
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1

propose if director can hang around too long to answer in the

2

end, let me throw that to you, Layne.

3

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

I'll be here the whole

4

time, but I'm just -- you know, the reason I brought it up is

5

because I don't know if as we go through these other areas,

6

you might lose sight of --

7

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

8

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

9

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Yes.

Okay.

Okay.
(Inaudible.)

I see your point, Director,

10

and I -- I would let vice chair go ahead with every

11

presentation, you know, then that way we don't lose sight,

12

like, you know, what you said.

13

guys, I would like to have, then, vice chair go ahead before

14

we lose, you know, the substance of the question.

If everything is okay from you

15

Go ahead, Jamie.

16

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

17

Layne, I have a couple of -- a few questions, I

18

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

guess.

19

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

20

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Sure.

The -- back to funding, so

21

I -- you had stated that funding comes from the license

22

renewals, is that where all the funding comes from, or does it

23

also come from fines?

24
25

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:
good question.

Okay.

Actually, that's a

We do not -- none of our funding comes from
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1

fines.

2

used.

3

words, through education, whether it be educating our staff or

4

educating licensees, or providing educational material for the

5

licensees.

6

goes into our education fund, and there's very specific,

7

strict access to those funds.

8

budget with that.

The fine money is very specific in how it's able to be
It can only be used to benefit the licensees; in other

9

That is regulated by state law.

The fine monies

We cannot fund any of our

Our operating budget is funded entirely through the

10

renewal application basic fees as well as what is known as the

11

percentage fee assessment.

12

based on their gross liquor sales for the past fiscal year.

13

It -- and it's not based -- it doesn't include T-shirts, it

14

doesn't include soft drinks, it doesn't include food; it's

15

solely based on liquor sales.

16

the entire time that I've been with the department, it hovers

17

right -- somewhere right around 1 percent of the gross liquor

18

sales from the previous fiscal year, that makes up the

19

remainder.

20

complicated process that I couldn't explain the formula to

21

you, but my simple understanding of it is it's calculated

22

by -- we take into consideration our carryover from the

23

previous year if there is any, added to the basic fees that

24

are collected at -- with the renewal application, divided by

25

the -- our need that remains after those funds are calculated,

The percentage fee assessment is

And it's my understanding that

And that percentage is determined -- it's a very
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1

and that's how they determine the percentage to come to our --

2

basically, our agreed-upon budget that is approved by the

3

commission as well as county council.

4

one take one penny more than what is allotted in our budget.

5

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Okay.

We don't -- we don't

Thank you.

I just --

6

I guess I'm just looking for clarification on -- more so on

7

just what happens with the fines.

8

back what I think I heard, that it doesn't go to our actual --

9

to your actual everyday needs, electricity, payroll, all of

And I'm just gonna repeat

10

that; that's all through their licensing.

11

however, go towards education, which I guess, technically, if

12

we were having this as a -- this would probably fall under

13

that, right, if -- something like this could be paid for

14

through the fines?

15
16

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

18

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

19

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

20

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

21

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

23
24
25

It's possible, yeah.

Yeah, yeah, you --

17

22

But the fines do,

Educational conferences.
Yes.

Educational -Yes.

-- things like that.

Okay.

So I just -- thank you for that clarification.
And if anybody has more on that, please go ahead.
I'm done with that, but -And I wanted to move on to -- so you'd mentioned
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1

also what seems to be a big deal for some reason, the whole

2

issuing of -- I call them citations.

3

them when you issue a notice -- notice of something?

4

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

5

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

What do you guys call

Notice of violation.

Notice of violation.

So are

6

you saying that that's not your -- the end-all and you're not

7

guilty or whatever?

8

ticket.

9

get a speeding ticket for doing 70, you know, you're not

10

guilty, but you're being told you're gonna have to go to

11

court, you know, or -- you can fight it, or you can just pay

12

it type of deal.

13

comparison?

14

I compare that to like getting a speeding

You're driving down, you know, Veterans Highway, you

Is that a fair assessment, a fair

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

No, actually.

Once you

15

receive a notice of violation, there is no determination at

16

that point in time.

17

basically, all -- what happens is if we issue a notice of

18

violation, from that point forward, we have to prove what

19

happened or that what we said happened actually happened.

And

20

if we cannot meet the mark in proving it, it goes nowhere.

So

21

it is not -- it's not a summons, it's not a -- it doesn't say

22

that; well, because I gave you notice of violation, there is

23

gonna be some adverse effect.

24

notice, is all it is.

25

It's not a summons, and it's not --

Not at all, no.

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

It's just a

Well, I guess what I'm trying
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1

to get to with the citation portion is citations have a built-

2

in safety valve in it that nobody can just -- you can't just

3

throw away a citation.

4

be a Class C felony if you tried to fix it, but that's a whole

5

'nother story.

6

checks and balances as far as if a -- if the notice of

7

violation is issued, does that have to be terminated by the

8

prosecutor?

9

notice of violation?

10

I guess technically you can, it would

But for the -- your guys' system, is there a

Does the prosecutor get to see every single

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

I don't know.

Richard,

11

maybe I'll let you take that one 'cause I don't believe so.

12

believe it's based upon the evidence that is collected by the

13

investigator whether there is actually a case to be had or

14

not.

15
16

MR. ROST:

Yeah, yeah.

I

Can I -- first of all, can

everyone hear me okay?

17

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

18

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

19

MR. ROST:

Okay.

Yes.

Good.

Yes.
You know, I see notices of

20

violation which are sent to me by the department.

21

suppose it's possible that notices of violation are issued,

22

and then it -- for reasons unknown to me, they don't make it

23

over to the prosecutor's office, the department decides to

24

deal with them in some other fashion.

25

practice is when a notice of violation is issued, it's sent to

It's -- I

But I think the general
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1

the prosecutor's office for action, and I review it and

2

determine are we going to file what's called a complaint and

3

accusation with the board and pursue this in a hearing with

4

the board, or are we gonna do something else with this notice

5

of violation, just issue a warning letter or something to that

6

effect.

7

notices of violations get sent to the prosecutors, and we

8

review them and determine what further action, if any, will be

9

taken.

So the general practice, as I understand it, is the

10

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

11

to repeat what I think I heard.

12

is, is that there's no set system that you're gonna see

13

everything, that it's ultimately up to the department, and

14

that decision would be made either by Layne or his

15

supervisors.

16

even the investigator himself who's issued the citation or

17

notice of violation could, through his or her investigation,

18

decide that it's -- was not warranted.

Okay, Mr. Rost.

I just want

I think what I've heard here

Or, actually, if I've heard Layne correctly,

19

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

20

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

21

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

So it can be --

Well, that --

-- ended at multiple levels?
Let me clarify.

It'll

22

never be the investigator.

23

gets filed.

24

position of the department, if, say, for -- hypothetically,

25

for example, if a notice of violation is issued for not having

There will always be a report that

But I get -- and I guess just to clarify the
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1

a certified employee on -- in active charge of the premises,

2

but through the course of our investigation, we discover that

3

there actually was a certified employee in charge of the

4

premises at that specific time, that report would then be

5

filed along with the evidence that states that there was no

6

violation that actually took place.

7

of violations that get issued that would not end up with the

8

prosecutor's office are notices that are issued that are then,

9

through investigation, discovered to have been erroneous, I

So the -- the only notice

10

guess, for lack of a better word.

11

would not be made by the investigator that's investigating the

12

violation; that determination would be made by either

13

myself -- with the advisement from the supervisors based on

14

the evidence that is collected during the investigation.

15

yeah, all other violations that are issued that are

16

substantiated will be forwarded and are forwarded to the

17

prosecuting attorney.

But that determination

But,

18

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

19

repeat what I think I've heard.

20

making this very abundantly clear:

21

I'm asking, and this has nothing to do with Layne.

22

done nothing wrong.

23

has been nothing I know of that's been wrong.

24

seeing things in the system that I might want to see what we

25

can do to change, and I want to find out through this meeting

Okay.

I want to just, again,

And I want to start this by
I have a purpose in what
Layne has

This is gonna come to a point, but there
But I'm just
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1

if we have the ability to do so.

2

any of you like I'm trying to flush something out on Layne or

3

something that I knew that happened, that's inaccurate because

4

I don't know of anything like that.

5

something in the system that's different than what I'm used

6

to.

7

So if this comes across to

I'm just -- I just see

So I'm gonna reiterate what I think I've heard.

8

Ultimately, what I've heard, Layne, is that at the end of the

9

day, you're the one that makes this call.

It'll be by

10

advisement through your supervisors, and if you find it to be

11

erroneous, then you're gonna dismiss it, and it's gonna end

12

there.

13
14

Is that correct?
DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

Yes.

It'll be filed,

yeah.

15

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

So for my -- how I grew up in

16

Maui, whenever we had to throw away a citation, be it

17

erroneous -- let's say it's a no-insurance citation, somebody

18

comes in right afterwards, walks in the station, hey, it was

19

right, it was in my blah, blah, blah.

20

hey, we've checked on it, he has -- he has insurance, just get

21

rid of the tag.

22

supervisor would do that, we would write a memo, and we would

23

send it to a judge, and that judge would have to throw it

24

away.

25

what I always assumed as a checks and balance system.

The supervisor goes,

We couldn't just throw it away.

The

We do not have -- we didn't have that ability, and for
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1

know, obviously, you don't want to be fixing tickets, right,

2

so it has to be a legit reason.

3

this that I think something's happened, you're incorrect.

4

know, Layne just started, I just see a system -- while I'm

5

listening to things, I'm like, oooh, where's the checks and

6

balances?

7

but that's not the system.

8
9

And, again, if anybody reads
You

I'd feel better if it would go to Mr. Rost, but --

So then my follow-up question comes -- did I hear
correctly?

10

Is that -- is my description correct, Layne?
DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

Somewhat.

Although, I

11

think we should be a little bit careful in comparing our

12

notice of violations to a citation.

13

might want to be cautious in how we look at it, but, yeah,

14

you're right, you're correct.

15

gets thrown away.

16

we do have an ongoing record of all notice of violations that

17

are issued.

18

That's one area that we

And just to clarify, nothing

Everything is either filed or forwarded, so

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Right.

But it's not

19

available to the public or presently not even available to the

20

commission, correct?

21

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

22

that.

23

record.

24
25

I would have to verify

I'm not exactly sure what the status as far as public

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

So this isn't your system,

Layne, and it isn't something you put in play, you just
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1

started, braddah, I get it, you know.

2

gonna go to the -- to Mimi, is where I want to direct this

3

in --

4

Go ahead, Bruce.

5

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

6

COMMISSIONER U'U:

So this question is now

You wanted to jump in?

Yeah.

Go ahead, Bruce.

Okay.

Yeah.

So this is about

7

the liquor adjudication, and I'd like -- I'd like to add that

8

I had no idea, so it's good to know, Layne, what you're

9

explaining.

I think once the process of the notice of

10

violation goes and you guys give them the all-clear signal,

11

they have an opportunity again that goes in front of the

12

liquor adjudication, correct me if I'm wrong, with -- where

13

they can, I guess -- I guess, like I said, the court system

14

where they can -- they can appeal or they can share their side

15

of the story or the -- or whatever violation that went

16

through, and it will be up the adjudicators to come up with

17

the potential fine if any.

18

is -- and I'm -- again, I joined the meeting late, so I

19

might've been missing something.

So I like that process where there

20

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

21

COMMISSIONER U'U:

Yes.
But the process, again, through

22

the adjudication -- and, again, I just jumped on like ten

23

minutes ago.

24

up to what I missed, sorry about that, guys.

25

morning.

Sorry about that.

And, again, if I gotta back
But good
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CHAIR BOLOSAN:

2

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

3

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

4

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

30

Good morning.
Good morning.

Yeah.
(Inaudible) wasn't about

5

somebody who gets ticketed, I mean, or followed through and

6

fined.

7

attacking Layne.

8

in the police department where I'm from, this stopped

9

fixing -- ticket-fixing.

I'm trying to find out -- and, again, I am not
I'm actually checking.

I see something that

So I'm talking about the situations

10

where they tell them, Oh, here's a violation, and they're

11

told, later on, you know what, never mind, everything's good,

12

but nobody else sees it.

13

not gonna come to the board because they didn't get fined.

14

They were told no need, everything pau already.

15

one I'm gonna at.

16

ask because that was the big thing I wanted to get out of this

17

meeting was (inaudible) what we're supposed to do.

18
19
20

That's all I'm saying.

So they're

So that's the

So that's where I was gonna go to Mimi and

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Okay.

Mimi, you want

to (inaudible)?
CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

The Hawaii Revised Statute

21

deals with the issue of how police officers issue tickets and

22

what can and cannot be disposed of for a lot of reasons, but

23

let's just leave it at that, 'cause it's not really part of

24

this training.

25

set it out.

But that's -- that is the procedure that has

The rules of practice and procedure for Maui
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1

County are written by the adjudication board and by the liquor

2

commission, and so they follow the procedure in how these

3

tickets and notices of violation are -- you know, are set out.

4

There may be HRSs, and I would probably want to defer to

5

Mr. Rost on this, but I think there are probably portions of

6

the Hawaii Revised Statutes that also guide how liquor

7

adjudication boards on a local level deal with citations, etc.

8
9

But for purposes of this training, I think for
the -- those folks that are new, what we're trying to

10

emphasize with them is the procedure that takes place without

11

getting too meshed down into, you know, how can we change it.

12

I'd like to see if we can just kind of focus on what is the

13

procedure and protocol right now rather -- you know, just so

14

that people are clear.

15

from the training thinking, what -- am I supposed to follow

16

this or am I -- you know what I'm saying?

17

caution you from going too far afield on it, but I understand

18

what you're -- where you're coming from with your questions.

19

Because I don't want them to walk away

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Okay.

So I'm just gonna

I just want to add

20

some clarification to it.

21

root of it is my -- and this is what I wanted to get out of

22

this training was, is really to find out what my function or

23

our function as the commission is.

24

impression that the commission was set up instead of having

25

the mayor, you know, put in a new head -- every mayor gets a

The point of my question and the

Because I'm under the
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1

new head, that it adds stability.

2

not normal, in other situations, directors answer to the

3

mayor, so the mayor would check to see if they're not doing

4

proper things, I guess, and then could make changes.

5

I was leading to this is -- what I'm trying to get to is what

6

type of information is supposed to be shared with us and what

7

are our responsibilities?

8

make sure that things are going properly?

9

doesn't just go from the -- from the notice of violations,

So in a normal situation --

So where

What should we be looking into to
Because this

10

mine was gonna be, you know, go -- I wanted to know what --

11

what is it that we can do and what is it that we're supposed

12

to be doing.

13

Because we don't want a situation that happened in

14

Oahu years ago.

15

has nothing to do with what I believe is going on.

16

looking through what are we supposed to be doing as a

17

safeguard, you know.

18

misguided and this is a question that I should save for a

19

commission meeting, then I will.

20

off -- I actually had -- that's what I thought this whole

21

thing was about, was all this was gonna get fleshed out.

22

if it's better is to flesh it out during a meeting, I can do

23

that too, and we can move forward.

24

that.

25

Again, this has nothing to do with Layne; it
I'm just

So is that -- am I -- and if I'm

I don't want to take us

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

But

I have no trouble with

Well, let me just add
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1

this:

2

you're -- you're a liquor commissioner.

3

adjudication board and the commission, right?

4

portion of the training is focusing on what occurs with

5

citations that are brought before the liquor adjudication

6

board; that's my understanding of what was just discussed.

7

And that is not something that the commission has any function

8

or authority over.

9

under the county charter.

We're talking about the liquor adjudication board, and
So there's the
And so this

They're two completely separate bodies
Okay?

So the liquor adjudication

10

handles this.

11

prosecuting attorney's office who brings these cases.

12

commission handles issues having to do with the department of

13

liquor control.

14

of the two, which I'm gonna go over when we get to my portion

15

of the training, what the difference is between the two.

16
17

The

So just to be real clear on the delineation

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Okay.

I'll wait and hold off

until --

18
19

Mr. Rost is the representative from the

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

(Inaudible) helpful or

not.

20

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Thanks.

I'll just wait,

21

then, till it gets more towards -- once -- you tell me when

22

it's directed towards the commission, and I'll bring it back

23

up.

Thank you.

24

CHAIR WILLIAMS:

25

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Hi, this is Jason.

(Inaudible.)

Jason, you're muted.
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Oh, I'm sorry.

I was trying to

2

talk.

3

adjudication board chair; I wanted to know too.

4

what rules -- I didn't know that we were the ones writing the

5

rules for it and this is very much trying to understand also

6

what things we can impact on and cannot.

7

meetings in the past, and I have a very basic view of it.

8

I like where Jamie was going to get a better understanding of

9

what we can do and what we can't impact on.

10
11
12

Yeah, I was saying what Jamie was saying, and I'm the
I had no clue

I've joined these
And

So on the

adjudication board, we want to know, too, if that makes sense.
CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

I'm sorry.

Can I jump in,

Layne, real quick?

13

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

(Nodding head.)

14

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

And I -- I'll cover this

15

also when I get to my section, but it applies equally to

16

yours, Mr. Williams, and that is the best place to start in

17

understanding what your roles, duties, and responsibilities

18

are is to read the rules of practice and procedure for your

19

adjudication board.

And the reason I say that is because --

20

CHAIR WILLIAMS:

21

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

I did.

I did.
-- all the boards and

22

commissions have a section that talks about rulemaking that

23

all relates back to the Hawaii Revised Statutes.

24

you may feel like things just sort of get plopped down in

25

front of you and you deal with them, in fact, boards and
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1

commissions both have rule-making processes that they can make

2

changes to the rules.

3

particular item of concern for your board, you may want to

4

agendize that and talk about it and see whether or not, you

5

know, your board wants to make changes to the rules, that's

6

absolutely appropriate.

7
8

And I can suggest that if there is a

CHAIR WILLIAMS:

Okay.

Thanks.

No, 'cause for us,

I guess, we haven't had a meeting in a year now.

9

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

10

CHAIR WILLIAMS:

I mean --

Right.

I think this has been the easiest

11

chair job I've ever had in my entire life.

12

have no clue how, by not having meetings, can we make changes?

13

But okay.

14

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

15

CHAIR WILLIAMS:

16

statutes.

17

Okay.

And so I -- so I

Right, right.

But, yeah.

And I did read my

Thanks.

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

I'm sure you did because I

18

sat in on the very one meeting that you had, and you did a

19

good job.

20
21

CHAIR WILLIAMS:
impressive.

22

Thank you.

It was pretty

Thanks a lot.

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Oh, boy.

Okay.

Thank you, Jason

23

and Mimi.

24

move on, is there any more other little stuff that we missed

25

before I call on prosecuting attorney Richard Rost?

Can we move on?

Before I do ask Richard Rost to
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If not, without further ado, I'd

3

like to call on prosecuting attorney Richard Rost to cover

4

prosecuting attorney role.

Richard.

5

MR. ROST:

6

So, yeah, as the chair indicated, I'm Richard Rost,

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

7

I'm a deputy prosecutor here with the County of Maui, and

8

I'm -- I'm the one who's currently assigned to the -- to the

9

liquor control adjudication board.

That assignment can and

10

does shift, but it's been mine for a year or so now, which, of

11

course, means I haven't really done a whole lot of appearances

12

before the board because we haven't been having meetings.

13

might recall we had one a very long time ago, and since then,

14

we haven't had any.

15

future, they'll -- they'll be handled by me.

16

You

But assuming we have some hearings in the

Just to touch on what was being talked about before,

17

just to give a little bit of background on how a -- what's

18

called a complaint and accusation ends up in front of the

19

board, the department will issue notices of violation when

20

their inspectors find just cause for that, and they will send

21

me the -- send me the notices of violation.

22

and I evaluate them, you know, I consider is this something

23

we're gonna be able to prove to the board, does every -- is

24

every element of a violation met, things like that, and I make

25

a decision.

And I review them

Sometimes it's just to issue a written warning,
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1

something like that, but in -- with the board's involvement,

2

I'll ask the department to prepare what's called a complaint

3

and accusation.

4

licensee is being charged with a -- with a particular

5

violation of the rules, and they get served this document

6

called a --

7

And that's when, essentially, it's -- the

Well, to back up a little bit.

The department

8

prepares the complaint and accusation; I review it and say,

9

okay, it looks good, or change this, something like that.

10

Once it's approved, I sign off on it; it's then served by the

11

department on the licensee.

12

receive it, has a choice.

13

I have on the agenda here, their plea, which is under 6C.

14

Basically, they have -- and I'll -- rather than go in the

15

order here, burden of proof, preponderance of the evidence,

16

I'll talk about the plea first, because that's the -- that's

17

the first thing that happens once the complaint and accusation

18

is served.

19

And the licensee, when they

And this is part of the items that

The licensee has -- there's a form that they receive

20

with the complaint and accusation and it -- and it has three

21

checkboxes on it, essentially.

22

Stipulation and waiver (guilty plea), and with that,

23

there's -- the licensee is essentially admitting that

24

whatever's in the complaint and accusation is true, it

25

happened, they're waiving having a hearing before the board.

The first one says,
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1

They're -- essentially, if they check that box, they're

2

saying, I'm not even gonna show up, do whatever you have to

3

do.

4

from the department; the licensee is waiving their presence,

5

so the board will probably just hear from the department.

6

Generally, in the case of a guilty plea, under the board's

7

rules and to touch on what was talked about before, it's

8

Chapter 102; those are the liquor control adjudication board

9

rules that have been adopted.

So, in that case, in a guilty plea, the board can hear

And the other part of that

10

equation is the HRS Chapter 281 has -- has some bearing on

11

this, but the more specific rules for how the hearings are

12

conducted is under Chapter 102.

13

when there's a -- a guilty plea, generally there aren't

14

witnesses unless the board wants to hear -- wants to bring in

15

somebody and have -- you know, ask the department to call

16

someone as a witness to hear from them.

17

get sort of a general statement from the department as to what

18

happened, and then the board will make a decision on what kind

19

of penalty they want to impose.

20

But, so under Chapter 102,

Normally, you just

The second option on the plea form is called

21

Stipulation, waiver, and request for informal hearing, and

22

that's parens, no contest plea.

23

generally saying, as the name implies, you're not admitting or

24

denying the charge, but you're not going to fight it.

25

not going to contest what's been charged.

A no contest plea is

You're

And the result of
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1

that is essentially that the -- the licensee is waiving the

2

hearing, but they'd still want to appear and perhaps provide

3

an explanation or give some -- some partial excuse that

4

perhaps might mitigate the penalty, but they're not gonna

5

contest the -- essentially, the guilt of the accusation.

6

And the final option on the plea form is called

7

Notice of defense (not guilty plea).

8

check that box, that essentially means there's gonna be a full

9

hearing with witnesses and, you know, testimony to -- and it's

And that -- if they

10

gonna be the board's job to determine whether or not the

11

accusations in the complaint are true.

12

a very brief overview of how this process works.

13

So that's just sort of

Now, the other issues are on the agenda here,

14

burden -- the first one, burden of proof, and that's touched

15

on by the -- by the rules under Chapter 102, Section

16

08-102-90D says that before the board, the burden of proof and

17

the burden of persuasion are on the party that initiated the

18

proceeding.

19

that's issued the complaint and accusation, the department has

20

issued -- has initiated the proceeding, so the burden of proof

21

and the burden of persuasion are on the -- on the department

22

when a licensee pleads not guilty, and we go to a hearing.

23

So generally that -- because it's the department

So the burden of proof and the burden of persuasion

24

are sort of -- they're very sort of fine legal concepts, and

25

lawyers, in fact, can conflate them, so I'm gonna try to just
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1

make it as simple as possible.

2

party with the burden of proof has the burden of coming

3

forward with some evidence to support what they're alleging.

4

So because the burden of proof is on the party that initiated

5

the proceeding, i.e., the department, the department has to

6

come forward with some -- some sort of evidence to show that

7

the allegations are true.

8

that they've -- the licensee has overserved someone, the

9

department's gotta come in with at least something -- you

The burden of proof is -- the

For example, if the allegation is

10

know, the inspector's gotta come in and say, This person, I

11

observed that they were clearly drunk, they received another

12

drink, that's -- that's some evidence to suggest that the

13

allegation is true.

14

doesn't have to prove anything, so essentially if -- if the

15

party without the burden of proof doesn't present any

16

evidence, the complaint has to fail.

The party without the burden of proof

17

The burden of persuasion is related to this, but

18

it's -- the burden of persuasion is, is to what extent the

19

party with the burden of proof has to convince the board that

20

the allegation is true, and that's related to -- to Item B,

21

6B, which is preponderance of the evidence.

22

before the board under the rules, the -- the burden of

23

persuasion is preponderance of the evidence, and preponderance

24

of the evidence is -- just means that something is more likely

25

than not.

In proceedings

It doesn't have to be a lot more likely, it just
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1

has to be slightly more likely, you know, and I -- putting

2

numbers on it is not really necessarily required, but if

3

you -- if you found something was 51 percent more likely than

4

not to have happened, that would satisfy the burden -- the

5

preponderance of the evidence standard because it's slightly

6

more likely than not.

7

And that's -- you don't just look at did this -- did

8

the party more evidence or more exhibits, that -- that's not

9

the question, it's -- it's whether the quality of those -- the

10

evidence that you've been presented makes it -- makes you

11

believe in your mind that something is more likely than not.

12

And, you know, I -- there's a Hawaii -- for civil cases, the

13

courts have adopted form jury instructions, and I'm just gonna

14

give you the Hawaii civil jury instruction on preponderance of

15

the evidence.

16

jury in a civil case regarding what preponderance of the

17

evidence means.

18

This is what a judge would read to a -- to a

So to prove by preponderance of the evidence means

19

to prove that something is more likely so than not so.

20

means to prove by evidence which, in your opinion, convinces

21

you that something is more probably true than not true.

22

does not mean that a greater number of witnesses or a greater

23

number of exhibits must be produced.

24
25

It

It

So that -- it's pretty simple, what -- I think
that's pretty self-explanatory as to what preponderance of the
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1

evidence means.

2

the -- the standard that most people are pretty familiar with

3

just from watching TV, which is beyond a reasonable doubt.

4

That's using criminal cases; that's a much, much higher

5

standard than preponderance of the evidence.

6

the evidence is just is it more likely than not?

7

your mind, then the burden has been satisfied.

8
9

You know, it's -- it's in contrast with

Preponderance of
If it is in

And the other -- going back to -- to pleas, just
briefly, under the -- under Chapter 102, Section 08-102-92,

10

when -- either the guilty or no contest plea, again, there are

11

no witnesses called, but, again, that is -- that is up to the

12

board to determine if -- if they want to hear a witness, they

13

have the discretion to ask for one.

14

a guilty or no contest plea, the burden of proof stuff, burden

15

of persuasion, both of those are sort of out the window.

16

question of whether the allegation needs to be proved is over

17

at that point, and it's just a question of whether or not --

18

what kind of penalty if any, the board is going to impose.

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

But once -- when there's

The

And with that, I don't have anything further, and
I'm -- I'm happy to take any questions there might be.
CHAIR BOLOSAN:

Thank you, Richard, for your

valuable informations.
Any discussion, questions from the members?
Commissioners?
(No response.)
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Richard, for those valuable information, like I said.

3
4

43

I would like to move on to the -- the rest of the
items, and it's gonna be for Mimi to cover all this.

5

Mimi, would you want to take it away?

6

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

7

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

8

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

9

So, I wanted to just start out by explaining we

I'm ready to roll.

Go ahead.
All right.

Thank you.

10

have -- basically, there are three lawyers who you are going

11

to be dealing with from corporation counsel and prosecuting

12

attorney's office, depending on which of the two boards you're

13

on.

14

work for the county, and my role is I am the legal counsel

15

assisting both the adjudication board as well as the liquor

16

commission.

I'm Mimi DesJardins, I'm a deputy corporation counsel, I

17

So Mr. Rost's role and -- with the liquor

18

adjudication board is to -- to appear as a prosecutor and as,

19

actually, a party to these matters against the person who is

20

accused of committing a violation.

21

board if the board needs help understanding something.

22

wouldn't be looking to Mr. Rost to answer that question for

23

you; you'd look to your legal counsel for help.

24

with the liquor commission, we have Gary Murai, who is also a

25

deputy corp. counsel, you might hear of him occasionally; he

My job is to counsel the

And the same
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1

also comes to meetings sometimes to listen in.

2

represents the department of liquor.

3

between ourselves about what's going on with liquor and the

4

commission, but there is a very distinct difference between

5

the liquor commission and the liquor department.

6

His role is he

So Gary and I talk a lot

And so, my role is to be your legal counsel as

7

commissioners on the liquor commission.

8

meetings.

9

you would ask your legal counsel, can we do this or what's

I -- I attend the

If you have legal questions about what's going on,

10

this.

11

into what's called executive session.

12

explain what the duties are of the different lawyers that

13

you'll see coming and going and what -- and what we're

14

supposed to be providing for you folks.

Sometimes, we'll get into this a little bit more; we go

15

But I just wanted to

As far as your duties and responsibilities go, if

16

you look at the county charter and under Chapter 13, there's a

17

whole section that's entitled the department of liquor

18

control.

19

section that talks about the liquor control commission, and

20

the liquor control commission and what its powers and duties

21

are, and then there's another section here called the liquor

22

control adjudication board.

23

county charter, I'm looking at pages 33 and 34, and that

24

explains what your duties and responsibilities are.

25

And under the liquor control section, there's a

And if you have a copy of the

So every so often in our meetings, if I feel like
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1

things are sort of going off onto a tangent, I might come in

2

and say, Let me bring back to the duties and responsibilities

3

of the commission, and explain to you what you can and cannot

4

do.

5

duties and responsibilities.

6

materials when you became new board members that will help

7

guide you.

8

own so that I can easily flip to those sections and get back

9

on course and understand what -- what I'm there for, what you

So I really urge you to familiarize yourself with those
And you should've all received

I like to keep those binders close by.

I have my

10

folks are there for.

11

at powers, duties, and functions of the board and commission.

12

So those are really good places to look

The other thing that I want to cover this morning is

13

what we call the Sunshine Law.

14

board or commission, you've probably already had a little bit

15

of Sunshine Law training, but essentially, like the name sort

16

of infers or describes, Sunshine Law is about open meetings,

17

and it's about allowing the public access to government and

18

government functions and procedures.

19

of the Sunshine Law is that we do not favor government that --

20

that takes place behind closed doors.

21

community and members of the community are very aware of

22

everything that the -- that government does.

23

exceptions to every rule, of course, but for right now, what I

24

want to sort of emphasize is, is that we want government to be

25

open, and we don't want people to think that, you know, deals

And if you've ever served on a

And so the basic premise

We prefer that the

There are
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are being made behind closed doors because we don't do that.

2

So that's why we call it the Sunshine Law.

But

3

there's all kinds of things that are covered under the

4

Sunshine Law, but the question is:

5

you folks as commissioners and board members, and what's gonna

6

be your takeaway in talking about the Sunshine Law today?

7

good news is if we're in the middle of a meeting and there is

8

a question about the Sunshine Law, my job is to clear that up

9

for you.

What's most relevant to

The

So I'm gonna give you information today, I don't --

10

I'm not gonna use a PowerPoint 'cause I find that on Zoom or

11

BlueJeans, that it's really distracting to do that.

12

can always ask questions in the middle of a board meeting

13

about the Sunshine Law, or I might pipe up and just say, for

14

example, you know, Commissioner Patel, I think that, you know,

15

we need to be careful here, I think we may be looking at, you

16

know, violating the Sunshine Law.

17

folks to keep you on track because my role, again, is to help

18

you as a board.

19

But you

I will try to assist you

So what we want to emphasize from the Sunshine Law

20

is the open meetings portion of that law, and we also want to

21

emphasize things like how do you have a -- how do you have a

22

public meeting?

23

have to post an agenda, and you have to post that agenda six

24

days prior to a meeting, and it has to be posted in very

25

specific ways.

Well, the first thing you have to do is you

And if it's not posted correctly, then the
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1

meeting has to be canceled.

2

agenda, and the agenda has to be -- the language in the agenda

3

has to be such that people from the public have an

4

understanding of what's gonna be talked about and what

5

possible actions might be taken, that's what we really want

6

the public to know.

7

materials during the meeting or are being asked to look at

8

materials during the meeting, we're gonna hyperlink those

9

materials to the agenda, so the public has access to them at

10
11

So the public then can read that

If the board is gonna be provided

the same time that -- that you folks do.
Sometimes commissioners ask me, Is it okay if I just

12

email everybody and give them a copy of this article, 'cause

13

it's really interesting, and it has a lot to do with the kind

14

of things that we do?

15

reason why is, again, is ask yourself, do members of the

16

public have access to that email?

17

public want to know what it is that the board collectively is

18

looking at?

19

to bring to the attention -- commissioners want to bring to

20

the attention of the commission, the best way to do that is to

21

either funnel it through the chair, contact corp. counsel and

22

ask whether -- what would be appropriate, and then if it's

23

something very relevant or important that needs to be

24

discussed, we can actually have it placed on the agenda, and

25

that way, the public can participate and understand it.

Yes.

And the answer to that is no.

No.

And the

Would members of the

So if there is something that people want
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You have to have a quorum in order to have a

2

meeting, and there are, of course, rules of practice and

3

procedure for both the adjudication board as well as the

4

commission, but on top of that, we also have Hawaii Revised

5

Statutes that control things like quorum, meetings, notice.

6

The Robert's Rules of Order, you might've heard of that too,

7

that's sort of the bible of parliamentary procedure.

8

it also lays out -- if you don't have any other guidance

9

anywhere else, you can always look to Robert's Rules of Order

10
11

It's --

about how to conduct a meeting.
But for a quorum, basically, in order to hold a

12

meeting, you have to have quorum, and a quorum has to be a

13

majority of the members that the board is entitled to.

14

so, for example, if it's a nine-member board, you have to have

15

at least five members present.

16

can do certain things if you don't have a quorum, but they're

17

very, very limited, and they never involve voting or

18

deliberating or discussing amongst board members; that has to

19

be done when there's a quorum present.

20

for example, is that if there's a presentation that is being

21

given to your board, the presentation can take place, and the

22

less than quorum members present can ask questions of the

23

presenter, but you cannot ask questions amongst yourselves or

24

start talking or deliberating.

25

meeting to do that because you don't have a full quorum.

And

There are times when the board

But what you can do,

You have to wait till the next
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1

lot of boards just simply, if they don't have a full quorum,

2

they just postpone or cancel the meeting and don't even have

3

the presentations, because, obviously, presentations are sort

4

of developed so that a lot of board members can hear them, so

5

it sort of defeats the purpose of a presentation if only three

6

or four people are actually present.

7

There's another thing that's -- that you can't do

8

under the Sunshine Law as a commissioner or a board member,

9

and that is you can't communicate with each other in what we

10

call serial communications.

11

I'm gonna pick on Janice and Sne, because you guys are like

12

smack in front of me, but for -- for example, if you are

13

sitting on the same commission and, Janice, you email Sne, and

14

you say, Hey, you know, I'm really concerned about this thing

15

that -- this item that we discussed or that's coming up, can

16

we talk about it?

17

can talk about an item that is board business.

18

make a commitment, however, to vote in any way, shape, or

19

form.

20

me on this, then I'll vote for your choice of chairperson or

21

whatever.

So I'm gonna give you an example.

That's okay.

You two members of a board
You cannot

So you can't get together and go, Listen, if you back

You can't do that.

22

The other thing you can't do is that after, Janice,

23

you talk to Sne about whatever, you don't then go and talk to

24

Colleen and say, Colleen, I just got off the phone with Sne,

25

and here's what we decided, then Colleen goes, Okay, I'll call
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1

Jamie, and then Jamie's gonna Leon.

2

done then is what's called serial communication, and you've

3

violated the spirit and intent of the Sunshine Law because you

4

just all had a nice discussion amongst yourselves when you

5

know that you're not supposed to do that.

6

Because what you've just

So what happens if you do that and somebody from the

7

public finds out?

8

complaint with what's called the office of information

9

practices, and they can say, you know, I -- I'm -- I think

And what happens is they can file a

10

that the liquor control commission violated the Sunshine Law

11

by doing the following.

12

counsel, saying, Can you please respond to this?

13

job is to go around, interview everybody, find out what

14

happened, and see whether or not there's a possible violation

15

of the Sunshine Law.

16

And then we'll get a letter, corp.
And then our

Most violations of the Sunshine Law are really,

17

really inadvertent mistakes; they just happen because, you

18

know, it can get a little complicated.

19

though, and you know darn well, because you took this

20

fantastic training, that you're not supposed to do that, there

21

is a possibility that the board -- the office of information

22

practices can make a finding that your violation was willful

23

and in those circumstances, the penalties become higher, and

24

at a certain point they actually can be criminal in nature.

25

The other problem is, is that if the board took an action and

If they are willful,
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1

there was a violation of the Sunshine Law, that action can be

2

unraveled, and that can have serious consequences.

3

example, you were in the middle of creating new rules of

4

procedure and there was a violation of the Sunshine Law,

5

everything that happened up to the point where you adopted

6

those rules may have to be unraveled.

7

If, for

So I keep a really close watch on inadvertent

8

Sunshine Law violations because, in my experience, I've never

9

seen a willful violation, but I have seen circumstances where

10

people just don't know, and so, you know, I butt my nose in.

11

And sometimes, you know, they're like, Hey, you know, why are

12

you harassing about this?

13

keep you guys from getting in trouble and to make sure that

14

board business gets done pursuant to the law and pursuant to

15

the rules.

16

Again, I'm just simply trying to

You can't discuss things that aren't on the agenda,

17

and that's another thing that you might hear me pop up and

18

say, or your chair might say, Hey, look, you know, this isn't

19

on the agenda, we're gonna have -- if you want to have a

20

discussion about this, we're gonna have to agendize this

21

later.

And that's certainly possible.

22

And also, under the Sunshine Law, unless it's a

23

contested case -- so this does not happen in front of the

24

adjudicatory board, but in front of the commission, we have to

25

allow the public testimony on items that are on the agenda.
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1

There are only certain types of items on the liquor commission

2

agenda that do not take public testimony, and those are the

3

ones in the very beginning of the meeting when you're going

4

over the license approvals that the director has indicated.

5

They've already been approved, they're only there for you

6

folks to basically ratify and approve, but we don't take

7

public testimony on that.

8

section of your agenda that's called public hearings, and

9

those are the ones where folks had to post 30 days in advance

10

and have their matter heard before the commission because you

11

folks have to take an action.

12

testimony.

13

report; we allow public testimony.

14

and say; I'd like to say something about Director Silva's, you

15

know, section about the emergency rules because of COVID.

16

so, we allow the public up to three minutes to testify.

17

have to allow them all the same amount of time.

18

words, you can't allow some people to testify for three

19

minutes, and then you say, Hey, I kind of like this guy, he's

20

on a roll, I really like what he's saying, I think I'll give

21

him five.

22

really want to, the minimum is three, but it has to be

23

consistent with everybody, that's really important as well.

24
25

But then there's another whole

For those, we allow public

You'll see also, for example, the director's

Okay?

The public gets to come in

And

We

In other

It has to be -- you can give five if you

Just very briefly, in terms of parliamentary
procedure, I don't know if you've ever seen the Robert's Rules
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
808-524-2090 courtreporters@hawaii.rr.com

June 17, 2021

53

1

of Order, but this is the book.

2

thick thing, so it's -- it's the kind of thing you read before

3

you want to go to sleep, for me personally, but there are

4

things in here that are really important for us in terms of

5

running our meetings.

6

take, for example, a conflict.

7

have a conflict in voting on an issue because they have an

8

interest, a financial interest in the subject matter, or they

9

know one of the parties or are related to them.

Okay?

It's like this giant

So in the event, for example -- let's
Somebody decides that they

Under the

10

parliamentary procedure, you are going to abstain from voting.

11

And because you have a conflict, your vote is not going to be

12

counted one way or the other.

13

don't want to vote and you don't have a conflict, under the

14

rules, your vote could be construed as an affirmative vote in

15

favor of the motion.

However, if you just decide you

All right?

So there's --

16

(Reporter's Note: Change in video chapters.)

17

-- and then your vote is negated and doesn't count

18

in just deciding you don't want to vote.

19

while, I'll see commissioners just say, I'm gonna abstain from

20

voting, and that vote then is -- is construed in favor of the

21

motion.

22

And every once in a

Another thing to remember is you'll hear this,

23

somebody -- the chair will say, Well, I'll entertain a motion

24

to approve the license.

25

the chair is inviting somebody on the commission to make the

The chair doesn't make motions, so
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1

motion.

2

I move to approve this.

3

before that motion then is presented to the entire board and

4

then is open for discussion.

5

second -- if there's no second, the motion fails, it doesn't

6

go to the board for discussion.

7

and your second, then it's open for discussion, and you folks

8

can start talking and deliberating.

9

One person will say, for example, Colleen might say,
You always have to have a second

So you get a motion, you get a

So once you get your first

After the chair feels like enough discussion has

10

occurred, the chair will then say, I'm ready to call for the

11

vote, or I'm ready to call for the question, all those in

12

favor, and then you'll be asked to raise your hand so that --

13

especially on Blue Jeans, so we can really see how folks are

14

voting.

15

opposed, raise your hand.

16

unanimous, it's important that we say all those in favor raise

17

your hand, all of those opposed, because the law also requires

18

that all votes be counted and recorded for every action that a

19

board takes.

20

watching carefully so that she can make a note of who voted

21

how during the meeting.

22

All those in favor, raise your hand.

All those

So although it might look

So, Maria, who's off on the sidelines, is

Sometimes somebody might put a motion forward, for

23

example, Janice might say, I move to adopt, you know, this

24

particular -- like I move to approve this license, and Sne

25

says, I second that.

Somebody else might come in and say,
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1

Well, wait a minute, I'd like to approve the license, excuse

2

me, but I want to put a condition on the license.

3

condition -- I want -- so I'm gonna make a friendly amendment

4

to the original motion to approve, but I want there to be --

5

like I'm just making this all up -- that they have to close by

6

10:00 p.m.

7

10:00 p.m. portion to see whether it bumps up to become part

8

of the first motion that's out there.

9

you're just back to approving.

Okay?

I want to

So then you will vote on that close till

And if it fails, then

If it passes, the motion now

10

is a motion to approve with the modification that they must

11

close by 10:00 p.m., and then you take a vote on that motion.

12

Okay?

So those are little actions that can take place.

13

What I like to do normally is I just sort of slow it

14

down a little bit while we're talking about it so that people

15

are very clear, like where we are in the voting process of

16

what exactly we're talking about.

17

talk about it during the meeting because we want to make sure

18

it's really clear, 'cause what you don't want to do is to mess

19

that up, and then you have the whole thing get unraveled.

20

Oh.

And then, again, we can

So every year, you have annual elections of

21

officers.

22

chair for your meetings.

23

order, the chair can defer items, for example, if you run out

24

of time or it seems like the discussion is over for the time

25

being, but the item is still important and might need to be

You folks will be electing a chair and then a vice
The chair's duties, one is to keep
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1

re-agendized, the chair has the discretion to do that.

2

chair generally does not vote unless he or she needs to break

3

a tie, so that's generally how it goes.

4

assumes the responsibility of the chair when the -- when the

5

chair is unable to attend the meeting or -- or if something

6

happens or the chair has a conflict, for example.

7

The

The vice chair

The chair also sets the agenda.

So you might

8

wonder, like, how do these agendas get developed?

9

chair approves the agendas.

Well, the

Director Silva lays out what he

10

would like to propose the agenda to look like, he meets with

11

the chair and the vice chair, talk about the agenda, and then

12

that's how it gets posted.

13

you'd like to place on the agenda, you can also let the chair

14

know.

15

know, Janice, you might say, you know, I'd really like to hear

16

a little bit more about how this happens.

17

topic that's related to the board, and you'd like to know a

18

little bit more about it, you have to get that information in

19

an open meeting, and we invite the public, and then they get

20

educated also on that subject.

21

If you have items that you feel

And that's not a violation of the Sunshine Law.

You

It may be just a

Something that's really important to remember is

22

what we call the executive sessions.

23

while, you are allowed to go into executive session, and the

24

public is not allowed to hear that conversation, but executive

25

sessions are very limited in their scope.

So every once in a

Generally speaking,
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1

you can go into executive session if you are talking about

2

personnel matters and that they -- you -- if you get enough

3

votes, and it's not just a -- a majority, it's what we call a

4

supermajority, so it has to be two-thirds of the members of

5

the board must agree to go into executive session.

6

example, if you are having a discussion and that discussion

7

suddenly needs some input from corp. counsel and in corp.

8

counsel's opinion, it's not the kind of thing that we would

9

want to talk about in open session because I may need to

Or, for

10

discuss with you your liabilities, your duties, what the law

11

is -- I can explain to you what the law is in public open

12

meetings, but every once in a while, I may have to have a

13

conversation that involves a little bit more about if you do

14

this, you might be liable for this, or you need to be careful

15

of this, that's the kind of information that you're gonna want

16

to get in what we call executive session.

17

So, for example, I might say, Chair, I would like to

18

discuss this, but I would strongly encourage you to do it in

19

executive session.

20

entertain a motion for -- to go into executive.

21

makes a motion, second, and then you go into executive.

22

other thing that's important -- and, again, I will be

23

reminding you.

24

just want you to be familiar with the buzzwords.

25

thing is, is that to go into executive session, you have to

And then the chair will say, Well, I'll
Somebody
The

You don't have to remember this, but just -- I
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Okay?

When you go into executive session, you are limited

4

in your discussion only to the subject matter for which you

5

went into executive session.

6

asking, Well, gosh, Corp. Counsel, you know, I had this other

7

question that came up the other day; what do you think about

8

this?

9

the purpose of why we went into executive session.

You can't deviate and start

I will tell you we can't talk about that; that's not

10

Another thing you can't do is you cannot vote in

11

executive session.

12

take action on, you would have your discussion in executive,

13

but then you would go out into an open session, and that's

14

where you would take your vote.

15

So if it was something that you had to

For the liquor adjudication board, it's a little bit

16

different, because you are -- your meetings are -- you are in

17

a quasi-public meeting setting, but you can do your

18

deliberations, if necessary, outside of the public -- viewing

19

of the public, but it's not called an executive session, it's

20

just a deliberative session.

21

to do that; you can just simply go into your session to

22

discuss that.

23

happen.

24

present.

25

And you don't even have to vote

But I -- again, I haven't seen that actually

Mostly, the discussions just occur with the parties

Okay.

So, moving on to code of ethics, a couple of
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1

very, very basic things.

2

have to do as a commission or board member is fill out the

3

financial disclosure forms.

4

are retained by the board of ethics, they are not published.

5

You are not an elected official and, therefore, you're not

6

uploaded to the website where people can see your -- you know,

7

whatever your financial status is, but you do have to fill

8

them out.

9

are a board or commission member.

You all know that one thing that you

Your forms are confidential; they

You will be reminded of that every year that you
If you don't do that, then

10

the board of ethics will issue a reprimand or possible

11

suspension of your commission position if you do not fill out

12

those financial disclosure forms on a yearly basis.

13

The board of ethics oversees all ethics in the

14

county.

15

always like to point out, and that is that you have the right

16

to ask them for an advisory opinion.

17

have a side job or you do something, you are affiliated with

18

something, and you have a sense that it may be something

19

that's going to sort of converge with your commission duties,

20

you can ask the board of ethics for an advisory opinion.

21

write them a letter, you explain what your situation is, you

22

submit it to them, and then they will issue an advisory

23

opinion saying, You know what, I think you're fine, but here's

24

what I would caution you about.

25

whatever, you know, advice they gave you, you can't get in

The board of ethics has one interesting role which I

So, for example, if you

You

And as long as you follow
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1

trouble later if you follow their advice, you have the right

2

to follow that.

3

that advisory opinion, and you go ahead, and you just do

4

whatever you're doing, and then you're found later to have

5

violated the rules of ethics.

6

doing that could -- the most significant one is you could be

7

removed from the board or the commission.

8
9

You can run into issues if you don't ask for

Some of the consequences of

Ethical issues do not come up very often in boards
and commissions, but they do arise sometimes if you're not

10

careful.

11

emphasize, one is the use of county property for personal use.

12

We -- as county employees, and you folks are considered county

13

employees for purposes of code of ethics; you can't use county

14

time, you can't use county staff to do anything that's

15

personal in nature.

16

One of the areas -- well, two areas that I want to

And the other thing is, is that you have to be

17

careful about gifts and solicitations.

18

a member, particularly of the two -- of any board that

19

involves liquor, you may be approached by people in the public

20

who find out that you're on the boards or commissions, and

21

they may want to say, Hey, you know what, I just want to thank

22

you for your service, here's a free meal at the Mill House,

23

thank you so much.

24

thanks.

25

to hand you a box of limes or avocados?

Because you'll find as

You need to tell them thanks, but no

You cannot take gifts like that.

Does someone want

We categorize those
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1

as what we like to call gifts of aloha that -- anything of

2

nominal value or anything that's not construed as designed to

3

influence you as a board or commission member is probably

4

okay.

5

anything and just explain to folks that it's just not

6

appropriate.

But my favorite rule of thumb is just to don't take

7

There are circumstances, though, where you may be,

8

for example, invited to attend a conference, and at that

9

conference, there's a dinner.

As long as that is provided to

10

everybody who's attending, you're okay, because that's just

11

simply, you know, something that's built into the conference.

12

Maybe you're asked to present at the conference for some

13

reason, and they agree to buy your plane ticket so that you

14

can attend the conference, that's okay because you're actually

15

performing a function when you get to that conference, but

16

that's probably about as far as you're gonna go.

17

gonna take compensation; you're not going to go to extra meals

18

or dinners or let them wine and dine you when you're there in

19

your capacity as a commission or board member.

20

You're not

The other thing to remember is that if you are

21

invited to a conference or to a training or a seminar or even

22

a county council meeting that may involve your subject matter,

23

you can attend as long as a less than a majority of you are

24

present.

25

training or the same conference.

Okay?

So a majority of you cannot go to the same
And that's really important
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1

because that, again, can be construed as a violation of the

2

Sunshine Law.

3

something like that was on the horizon because you will have

4

let us know, and then we can give you more specific details

5

about what is and is not appropriate.

6

a training or a conference and legitimately less than a

7

majority of you are present, what you're gonna do is at the

8

next meeting, you're gonna let us know, and we're gonna put a

9

little agenda item on there that says that, you know, Janice,

10

Colleen, and Sne attended the, you know, liquor conference in

11

Wailea and this is what was discussed and this is -- were the

12

dates of the meeting, and you're gonna give a little blurb

13

about what occurred, and that way at least the public is aware

14

that you went.

We would know way in advance, hopefully, that

But if you do end up at

15

So that's kind of my overview of ethics.

16

tell people if you have specific questions, you can also ask

17

corp. counsel.

18

you and help you brainstorm whether or not there's something

19

that you need to be more concerned about if it comes up.

20

You can call my office.

I always

I'm happy to talk to

Very quickly, these things do apply to you but don't

21

necessarily come up that often, hopefully.

22

have what's called a violence in the workplace action plan or

23

policy, and that's mandated by state and federal law, and the

24

bottom line is it applies to all county workers, including

25

boards and commission members.

One of them is we

We do not tolerate, in fact,
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1

we have a zero-tolerance policy on any acts of violence

2

against any county workers, and that includes you folks as

3

well.

4

your business free of any kind of harassment, of any

5

threatening, whether it's verbal or physical.

6

for anybody to show up at a meeting or to show up at any

7

county property possessing a firearm when conducting county

8

business unless that's part of your job, like a police

9

officer.

10

As county workers, you have the right to come and do

It is illegal

And, again, we take it very seriously.
If you witness an act of what you think is violence

11

in the workplace, you are to report that; you have a duty to

12

report that to the chair.

13

somebody has committed an act of violence against you, again,

14

you should go to the chair and report that as well.

15

also call corp. counsel, and we can give you direction on

16

that.

17

And if you feel that you --

You can

And the reason why we emphasize this so much is

18

because we really believe that people deserve to come to work

19

without being yelled at, demeaned.

20

know, physical intimidation, none of that is tolerated.

21

there are serious consequences to employees who treat you that

22

way if you feel like that's happened, and there will be an

23

investigation, and recommendations will come out of that

24

investigation.

25

whole procedure in place, that plan.

Even raising voices, you
So

People will be interviewed; there's like a
So just wanted to let
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you know that that's -- that is out there.
And then, also, very quickly, we do have policies

3

against discrimination and discrimination includes harassment,

4

like violence in the workplace, discrimination based on all

5

those standard classifications that we're all aware of.

6

again, if you feel that you've been discriminated against or

7

you feel like you've seen an act of discrimination, I would

8

encourage you to report it and talk about it, and we can see

9

whether or not that's something that needs to be -- needs to

10
11

But,

be dealt with.
The last thing that I want to talk about is the

12

attendance policy, and I'm pretty sure you folks all got a

13

copy of that.

14

and I'll admit, somewhat complicated attendance policy that's

15

part of the Maui County Code, and it's Section 2.41.090.

16

would encourage you to read that and -- and if you can

17

understand paragraph D -- no, no, no, paragraph E, let me

18

know, 'cause I really struggle with that one.

19

sure on the math on it.

20

you're going to be absent, you need to let the chair know at

21

least 48 hours prior to the start of the meeting, or you will

22

be marked as unexcused.

23

absences within six months, then the bottom line is what

24

happens is, is that you'll be asked to be removed (inaudible)

25

because we really need folks to show up.

It's fairly new.

There is a pretty lengthy,

I

I'm not quite

But the bottom line is if you know

And if you get enough unexcused
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My experience is that rarely do we have to cancel a

2

meeting because of lack of quorum, and when there is a lack of

3

quorum, it's usually for a really good reason, somebody's

4

really sick.

5

where people were unable to make it to meetings.

6

the chair know that you're not gonna be able to make it to a

7

meeting.

8

emergency or you get sick, you can't plan for that, let the

9

chair know and at least that way during the meeting the chair

Obviously, during COVID, we had some issues
So just let

And then, of course, if within 48 hours you have an

10

will announce, for example, you know, Commissioner Patel is

11

not present, but he's excused because he followed the

12

attendance policy and there was a reason.

13

unexcused ones that you really want to be (inaudible).

14
15
16
17

Okay.

So that's everything that I have.

CHAIR BOLOSAN:
commissioners?

Jamie.

Any questions from the

Go ahead, Jamie.

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

19

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

21
22
23
24
25

Does

anybody have any questions on any of that?

18

20

So it's only the

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Except for Jamie.

No, I'm

just joking.
COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Except for me?

I may come to

your office now and knock on your door.
CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

I know you are.

You can ask me the questions now, then.
(Laughter.)
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Actually, it wasn't a

2

question, more of a clarification.

3

everything you said.

4

everybody gets it.

5

little clarification on violence in the workplace.

6

people, I believe, think that violence in the workplace means

7

I have to go slap Colleen because she slapped me years ago

8

because I didn't know what I was doing, but the --

9

I just wanted to -- I don't know that

I wanted to make sure that if we need a

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

10

And thank you for

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

A lot of

She slaps all of us, so --

Yeah, we all get -- we're

11

all (inaudible).

12

really think that -- they think that -- they believe that

13

violence in the workplace has to be physical and that that is

14

not correct.

15

that.

16

know that personal experience in our -- on our board, I don't

17

believe everybody truly understands what violence in the

18

workplace means.

It's not 20 years ago where you actually had

19

to hit somebody.

You know, 20 years ago, you could get in

20

somebody's face, swear and spit and whatever, and they'd be

21

like, well, they didn't touch them.

22

could just expound a little more, I'd appreciate it.

23

That it's not just physical, some people

And I just was -- if you could just expound upon

I -- for me, you were very clear, but I just -- I just

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

No, you know, so if you

Yeah.

No, you raise a

24

really good point, and that is, you know -- I mean, I don't

25

want to date myself.

I've been practicing law over 30, years,
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1

and I can tell you that when I was a young public defender, we

2

had judges -- and Colleen knows this.

3

would throw things from the bench, okay, books, items, pens,

4

you know, and that was -- you were supposed to take that.

5

Right?

6

it goes at.

7

pointed at you.

8

are -- we have gone far in the other extreme that we actually

9

have trainings for staff to learn how to be extremely civil in

We had judges that

We were all supposed to think that that's just the way
Or get yelled at or screamed at or have fingers
We don't do that anymore.

We -- in fact, we

10

the workplace.

11

older generation used to put -- tolerate a lot of that.

12

tolerance means, you know, grabbing a, you know, paper out of

13

somebody's hand, making comments, derogatory comments, cutting

14

them down, disregarding them constantly.

15

cause a reasonable person psychological harm could be

16

construed as violence in the workplace.

So, yeah, so we -- I know some of us in the
Zero

Anything that could

17

So if -- in my experience, what I have noticed is

18

that some people get extremely animated and angry and raise

19

their voices.

20

myself, I may be -- I'm a little bit more thick-skinned; I may

21

not even notice it.

22

that kind of conduct really affects them deeply, that's the

23

person who's gonna file a complaint, and rightfully so,

24

because that person who is animated and yelling and screaming

25

needs to learn that we don't -- you know, we don't communicate

And for somebody -- for some people, including

There are other people, however, where
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1

that way in the workplace.

2

to communicate outside, but when you're at work, you need to

3

be civil with each other.

4

You can communicate how you want

And, again, if you are accused of violence in the

5

workplace and you -- for example, if Janice files a complaint

6

against me for some reason, I cannot go to Janice and be like,

7

Hey, what did you do that for or, you know, You shouldn't have

8

done that 'cause now I'm really gonna make your life

9

miserable.

When you get a letter saying, you know, you're

10

being investigated, it'll say very clearly, by the way,

11

retaliation is against the law.

12

person, let the investigation go through.

13

where these -- these things have happened, and they've been so

14

extreme that we've had to -- corp. counsel has gone in and

15

gotten restraining orders against somebody, either a member of

16

the public, maybe, who is bothering a commissioner, you know,

17

or something along those lines.

18

we'll help you out as much as we can to try to get the courts

19

involved.

20

doing an investigation and some kind of disciplinary action

21

being (inaudible).

22

physical, and it's not just being physical towards somebody.

23

All right?

24

abuse.

25

So you stay away from the
We've had instances

And in those extreme cases,

But most -- but most of the time, it's a matter of

So I hope that's clear it's not just

It can be just yelling or -- or verbal, verbal

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Or retaliation, correct?
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Well, retaliation comes

after you've been accused, exactly.

3

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Yeah, right.

That's -- but

4

it's classified as violence in the workplace.

I just wanted

5

to get that across to everyone.

6

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

7

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

You know, that it's not --

8

that it's not okay and stuff.

9

for all -- everything you've said.

10

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

11

So I appreciate it, thank you

Yeah.

No problem.

No

problem.

12

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

13

MEMBER PADILLA:

14

Yes, yes.

I haven't seen --

Does this -- I have a -- sorry.

Does this also translate over to social media?

15

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

16

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

Can you answer that, Mimi?

Mimi.

Yeah, social -- social

17

media is -- is a little bit more complicated because we have

18

restrictions as government entities.

19

talking about posts on government Facebook pages and people --

20

I mean, let's just take two examples; one is your personal

21

Facebook page, and another one is an official Maui County

22

Facebook page.

23

put up a thing that says, The liquor commission has a meeting

24

coming up, and at that meeting, we're gonna talk about blah,

25

blah, blah.

For example, if you're

And so on the Maui County Facebook page, we

And people start commenting, and they say, Well,
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1

these commissioners are a bunch of idiots, you know.

2

commissioners, they never know what they're doing.

3

That's free speech; we have to put up with a lot -- you know,

4

that kind of -- that kind of stuff.

5

start sliding into things like, you know, I wanna kill one of

6

the commissioners, or swearing at commissioners and F'ing you

7

know what, then we're looking a little bit closer towards

8

removing those posts as not free speech.

9

a -- that's a very complicated thing that we have to look at

10
11

These

Okay?

However, if the comments

Okay?

And that's

in our office as a matter of law.
However, if it's your own personal Facebook page and

12

somebody starts making comments like, Oh, you know, that

13

Colleen Cluney, I know she's on the adjudication board, and

14

she ruled against me and blah, blah, blah, and, you know, I

15

don't like that, you know, I would explore it and talk to

16

corp. counsel about it to see whether or not it rises to the

17

level of something that could be construed as violence in the

18

workplace, but that's sliding further away 'cause it's your

19

personal Facebook page and it's not actually in the workplace,

20

but it does involve you in your work capacity, you know, as a

21

county volunteer.

22

vague, but it's really (inaudible).

23

MEMBER PADILLA:

24

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

25

I hope that -- I hope that helps.

It's

Thank you.
Okay.

members, commissioners, board?

Any more discussion from the
The last chance.
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And I'll just end by

2

saying when in doubt, ask.

3

anything comes up and you have a question, don't be shy; just

4

ask, and we'll help you.

5

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

6

they great?

7

Give them a big applause.

8

Okay.

9

Okay?

Okay.

Thank you, Mimi.

Please, if you feel

Ladies and gentlemen, aren't

Thank you, Layne and Richard.

Thank you, Richard.

If not -- is there any more?

If not, I'm

gonna ask someone to --

10

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

11

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

12

Go ahead, Jamie.

13

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

14

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

15

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Mr. Chair.

-- entertain a motion.

I'm sorry.

Go ahead, Jamie.
So I know Jason and I were on

16

the same page on this, have we decided that we're gonna just

17

move this to another time and agendize it or what -- or is

18

this the time to ask, you know, Mimi, 'cause under us, and I

19

think the same for like Jason's question was (inaudible).

20

CHAIR WILLIAMS:

21

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Yes.
You know, I have multiple

22

areas of what are we to do, you know, what -- what are our --

23

I shouldn't say what are we to do, but what are our abilities

24

as far as making sure that we're the safeguard of the system?

25

'Cause, that's how I view this position, as we're like the
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1

mayor, you know.

2

doesn't oversee Director Silva because there's a commission,

3

so we have to -- we're the checks and ballots, so -- but with

4

that, I feel like there may be a lot of areas that we don't

5

receive information on that I would like to see information.

6

So like one of them was -- and I was just bringing it up as

7

one, 'cause I didn't tell to get -- I apparently went the

8

wrong way on it, but one of them was the issuance of notice of

9

violation, you know, what's the checks and balances to make

When I explain it to people, the mayor

10

sure that those aren't being -- you know, things are going

11

wrong and -- and I guess a better one, example, so it doesn't

12

look like it's Layne, 'cause this truly isn't about Layne.

13

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

14

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Yeah.
It's about the system.

Layne

15

just started, and I don't know anything, again, that -- of any

16

violations, but -- so like Oahu had some serious problems many

17

years ago when the feds had, you know, came in and there were

18

arrests and everything else.

19

if I'm supposed to be acting as the checks and balances, I

20

would like to know, okay, show me the cases that you decided

21

to dismiss, that way we know we're being evenly treated so

22

that I also know that, you know, there isn't whatever going

23

on.

24

sick leave -- not sick, but work comp, you know, just all of

25

these things.

And so to me, as a commissioner,

Like even, I don't know, overtime, people out on extended

So what are our limitations, Mimi?
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1

allowed to get -- am I allowed to just ask this information

2

and -- and then share it with the public, or how does this

3

work?

4

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

So -- so, again, your

5

limitations are when you look at the charter, what the charter

6

defines as your duties.

7

overseeing overtime for the department, as a -- let's just

8

take that as an example, what I do as an attorney is I look to

9

Section 8-13.2, liquor control commission, 'cause we're

And so when you say something like,

10

talking about the commission that you sit on, and it's -- and

11

it says what your duties and functions are very clearly.

12

so you have to ask yourself, does that subject matter fall

13

within any of these categories?

14

one is you're gonna prepare and submit an annual appropriation

15

for the operation of the department.

16

under that, right?

And

So, for example, the first

17

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

18

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

So it's not gonna fall

Right.
Okay.

Adopt rules having

19

the full force and effect of law for the administration of the

20

liquor -- of liquor control in the county and to carry out

21

provisions of the liquor control laws of the state, including

22

but not limited to the fixing of liquor license fees.

23

not gonna fall under that.

24
25

So it's

Grant, renew, or refuse applications for licenses,
blah, blah.

Not gonna go under that.
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Annually review and evaluate the performance of the

2

director of the liquor -- of liquor control and submit a

3

report to the mayor and the council.

4

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

5

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

Okay?

So it falls under that?
So the question is -- you

6

are tasked with reviewing and evaluating the performance of

7

the director.

8

mechanism for you to follow through with that duty.

9

come up with areas or categories, ultimately, that you're

So what you would do is you would be devising a
Perhaps

10

going to be looking at to determine how are you going to write

11

this report to council and the mayor giving an evaluation.

12

And then the last one is have such other powers and

13

duties as may be provided by law, not in conflict with this

14

section.

15

it would apply under that.

16

Well, that's just sort of a catchall.

I don't think

So my answer to you would be the commission is not

17

tasked with overseeing, setting, establishing, or judging

18

overtime as the department -- as it relates to the department.

19

What you are tasked with is overseeing and evaluating the job

20

that the liquor director has done.

21

say, well, but, you know, dealing with overtime is gonna

22

affect how I feel about the job he did, but you're gonna --

23

there's gonna be a point where it's gonna be more

24

micromanaging than what's really allowed here.

25

to evaluate him, and you'd have to come up with a mechanism to

So you may, for example,

You're allowed
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1

do that, but does that mean that you're gonna micromanage how

2

he does his job as opposed to evaluate how he did his job at

3

the end?

4

performance is different than telling them how to run the

5

department.

6
7

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

So evaluating somebody's

Correct.

I understand.

I

understand that, but, I mean, that --

8
9

You know what I'm saying?

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

So you wouldn't agendize

that, yeah, or --

10

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

The argument can be made at

11

any point when we judge the director on anything that they

12

could turn that and say, Well, you're telling me how to run

13

the department if you say you don't like this, so that's just

14

a different argument, but --

15

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

No, no, no.

No, no, no.

16

Let me -- let me be clear.

17

evaluating the director, I would assume that the director

18

would want to be aware of those areas that he might be

19

critically evaluated.

At the end of it, when you're

20

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

21

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

Right, right.
And if there's an issue

22

about overtime, maybe he needs to be -- but is that gonna be

23

something the commission is gonna put on a public agenda and

24

discuss?

25

come up in the evaluation?

Probably not.

Is it gonna be something that might
I would assume the director then
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1

would take on the responsibility of making sure that his

2

evaluation is gonna be positive, and if there are areas of

3

concern -- but I don't know -- we need to explore further the

4

idea of things that the department does on the agenda and

5

having you folks talk about them, because that's not -- in my

6

opinion legally doesn't -- that's not evaluating the director

7

on a yearly basis and writing a report.

8

saying?

9

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

Right.

You know what I'm

Yeah, I -- right, I

10

understand.

11

you're -- okay.

12

for this.

13

Layne know, Hey, this is what we're looking at, you know.

14

don't want to blindside anybody or anything else.

15

I'm just really --

16

I think I understand totally.

I think what

So -- and I'm with you on this, and I'm all

So as long as we put it in his evaluation and let

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

Right.

We

But I guess

So -- so, in other

17

words, one of the things that might go on your agenda is

18

coming up with an evaluation process and that way, the

19

director's on notice, here's the -- here's where -- what we're

20

looking at and here's how we're gonna score it, and so the

21

director doesn't walk in after a year and get blindsided and

22

go --

23

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

24

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

25

evaluating me?

Right.
How are you guys

So that will definitely be an agenda item.
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For the liquor adjudication board itself, which only

2

handles matters of adjudicate -- of complaints or notices of

3

violations, one of the questions that I have is:

4

board have the power and duty to promulgate rules or change

5

its rules of procedure?

6

because what I understand from the charter is it's only there

7

to oversee adjudications that are formally brought.

8

other words, they don't get involved in whether stuff

9

should've been dismissed or not.

Does that

I have to look at that more closely

So, in

They're like judges.

So

10

judges in court don't go; Well, wait a minute, I wanna go back

11

in time and look at how your office evaluated this.

12

not a neutral fact-finder.

13

presented, then you make the decision on it.

14

sausage is made, that's not the -- that's not the role of the

15

adjudication board.

16

That's

You wait until something is

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

But how the

So, right, but in -- but in

17

turn, though, and if it's a situation where -- I mean, we

18

don't have -- what I'm saying is there doesn't seem to have a

19

checks and balances.

20

adjudication board, it sounds like that would be the

21

commission, and the commission may need to put in a new rule

22

and procedure saying that there -- you know, there has to be a

23

checks and balances, you know.

24

there's a set system for the police department and --

25

So if we wanted to correct that, not the

Like I said, there's a --

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

Right, but rules of
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1

practice and procedure are down here, the county charter's up

2

here.

3

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

4

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

Correct.
So the rules of practice

5

and procedure can never supersede the charter.

6

look at the charter and what the people of the County of Maui

7

voted in as a charter amendment.

8

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

9

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

So you first

Right.
You look at that, and then

10

you determine whether what you're talking about is even

11

something that could be entertained under the charter.

12

rules of practice and procedure cannot violate the charter;

13

that's something to also keep in mind.

14

and balances in terms of like you're saying, Oh, let's just

15

amend the rules to allow the -- the adjudication board the

16

authority to -- like to examine how things are dismissed or,

17

you know, ahead of time, (inaudible) a conflict with the

18

charter?

19

something that could be done under the powers, duties, and

20

functions under the charter.

21

Right?

So

So if checks

I guess we'd have to find out later if that was

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

I'll speak -- I guess I'll

22

have to meet with you and speak with you on that.

23

concern is -- and, again, very clear, this is not going on

24

right now, I have no knowledge or anything, but I always see

25

something -- if I see a hole, I'd like to plug it so that
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1

there isn't -- doesn't ever happen.

2

there's absolute power, that saying, absolute power is

3

absolutely -- is it absolute power leads to absolute

4

corruption, absolutely, that's a saying that's -- you know.

My thing is, is that if

5

And it's not Layne.

6

respect for you in the world.

7

I'm just saying that if there's a -- no checks and balances

8

and we can just throw things away, then that leads to, like,

9

fixing, you know, the kickbacks and favoritism, you know, that

Braddah, I've got all the
I'm not saying it about him.

10

type of thing.

11

that, how do we plug them?

12

just -- it seems like it's more complicated.

13

meet with you later if that's okay.

So I -- I'm looking for when we see holes like
And I guess I -- I guess I'll

14

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

15

(Laughter.)

16

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

17

Maybe I'll just

No, it's not okay.

I'll bring food.

I'll bring

food.

18

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

19

But, yeah, it's a -- it's an important discussion, I

20

get it, but for terms of this training, what -- again, we have

21

so many things that we -- we can do that we're not even clear

22

on, I just don't want you folks to walk away going what, you

23

know.

24

mean, you're talking about maybe amending the Maui County Code

25

to provide for a different mechanism or the county charter.

All right, fine.

But I get what you're saying, Jamie, but that -- I
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1

But the rules of procedure -- practice and procedure are

2

really low down in the totem pole, so they have -- you have to

3

be careful when you are enacting rules that you are not

4

usurping the county code or the charter.

5

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

6

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

7

10

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

13

Okay.

Yeah.

take any more -- I appreciate all your stuff.

I don't want to
Thank you very

much.

11
12

So, yeah, we can talk

about it later, that's fine.

8
9

Right.

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:
really do.

I appreciate you guys; I

I enjoy working with all of you; it's fun.
DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

And if you don't mind,

14

just -- I'd like to just add one thing and just for clarity

15

for everyone to understand that -- and Jamie, yourself also --

16

nothing gets thrown away.

17

the prosecutor or it's filed, so there will never be a

18

situation where there is not a paper trail that leads to every

19

notice of violation that's issued.

20

know, not to confuse things, but just to clarify the language

21

of nothing gets thrown away.

22
23

Everything, it -- either it goes to

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:
Thanks, Layne.

So it is all -- and, you

Right.

I appreciate it.

Yeah.

24

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

25

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

Thank you, Layne.
Yeah.
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CHAIR BOLOSAN:

2

COMMISSIONER BECRAFT:

3

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:
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Any more discussion?
Chair, I'm good.

Thank you.

(Inaudible) you guys and

appreciate all of you.

5

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

6

DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA:

7

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

8

Richard, again, and Mimi.

9

informative.

10

Okay.

Thank you, Jamie.
Thank you, guys.

Yeah, thank you, Layne.

Thank you,

You folks have been very

We really thank you for all the information.

By saying all that good stuff, it comes to the point

11

where I have to say, May I have a motion to adjourn?

12

motion?

13
14

COMMISSIONER PATEL:

Do we need one?

Is it a

meeting?

15

CORP COUNSEL DESJARDINS:

16

just -- you could just go ahead and adjourn.

17

CHAIR BOLOSAN:

18

want to adjourn, then.

19

adjourned.

20

Any

No.

You could actually

Okay, all right.

Aloha, you guys.

I guess we all

Adjourned.

Meeting

Thank you.
(The proceedings were adjourned at 11:06 a.m.)
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I, Sandra J. Gran, Certified Shorthand Reporter for

6

the State of Hawaii, hereby certify that on June 17, 2021, at

7

9:06 a.m., the proceedings were taken down by me in machine

8

shorthand and was thereafter reduced to typewritten form under

9

my supervision; that the foregoing represents, to the best of

10

my ability, a true and correct transcript of the proceedings

11

had in the foregoing matter.

12
13

I further certify that I am not an attorney for any

14

of the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the

15

cause.

16
17
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